
Minutes of the Veneta City Council 
January 27, 2014 

.-'resent: Sar'idra Larson, Thomas Cotter, Victoria Hedenstrom, and Thomas Laing 

Absent: Brittany Boothe 

Others: Ric Ingham, City Administrator; Shauna Hartz, Finance Director; Kyle Schauer, Public Works Director; 
Chris Workman, City Recorder/Human Resources and Risk Management Administrator; Sgt. Osborne; 
and Michelle Ossowski, Fern Ridge Review 

1. CALL TO ORDER 
Mayor Larson called the City Council to order at 7:03p.m. 

2. STATE OF THE CITY ADDRESS- MAYOR SANDRA LARSON 
Mayor Sandra Larson gave the State of the City Address. A copy is attached. 

3. PUBLIC COMMENT 
None 

4. CONSENT AGENDA 
MOTION: Thomas Cotter made a motion to approve the consent agenda. Thomas Laing 

seconded the motion. 
VOTE: Thomas Laing, aye; Thomas Cotter, aye; Sandra Larson, aye; Victoria Hedenstrom, 

aye. 

The consent agenda as approved included: 
• Minutes for the January 13, 2014 Council Work Session 
• Minutes for January 13, 2014 Council Meeting 
• Accounts Payable through January 21, 2014 
• Civic Calendar for February, 2014 
• Temporary OLCC Liquor License from Classic Traditions Catering for an event at St. Thomas. 

Becket Catholic Church. 

5. COUNCIL BUSINESS AND REPORTS 
a. Business 

1) Presentation of FY 2012-13 Annual Audit 
2012-13 Annual Report: 
Steve Tuchscherer, the City Auditor, reviewed the audit report and accompanying two 
letters. The purpose of the first letter is to address any significant audit findings, of which 
none were noted. He said this letter is required. He noted that when the City first recognized 
capital assets some estimates of "cost" were necessary. 

He said the second letter identifies over-expenditure in one of the 21 current funds -which is 
really good. The letter also addresses the budget process and internal controls. Separation 
of duties is well done at the City. A weak spot for most cities is monitoring, however, no 
deficiencies were noted. 

In response to a question form Thomas Cotter, Mr. Tuchscherer responded that the 
unfunded retirement liability balance will begin to show up on the report in future audits. 
These are estimates of the amount of PERS for all eligible City employees for their entire life 
spans that is not currently funded. 

Minutes of the Veneta City Council 
January 27, 2014 

Page 1 



Ingham identified that though PERS may provide the dollar figures, the City will end up 
paying for that project one way or another. 

There is a lot of push back on the proposal, so it may not come to light, but that is the 
proposal GASB is considering at this time. 

In response to a question from Thomas Cotter, Mr. Tuchscherer said in the sewer fund debt 
service classification interest and expense had to be recorded in an amount larger than what 
the Finance Director expected. This is very common. He stated that it gets reported but 
there is no real consequence for something this insignificant. The Secretary of State reviews 
these audits and will contact entities and try to make things right when they see large 
problems. 

Mr. Tuchscherer reviewed the audit report briefly for the Council. He said he found no 
material misstatements in the financial records and he identified what was audited and what 
was reviewed. He said "material misstatements" are defined as approximately 5% over or 
under statements of a revenue or expenditure; great enough that somebne's decision may 
have been different had they relied on the incorrect amounts or disclosures. 

He said the Government-wide Statement of Activities recognizes the grant money coming in 
for the Fern Ridge Service Center but not the expense. The net position goes up because 
the money was invested into infrastructure and is captured in the financials as an 
. improvement. 

Mr. Tuchscherer said the balance sheet shows each of the major funds separately and each 
of the minor funds lumped together under Other Governmental Funds. He said GASB 54 
requires the fund balances to be reported by type and he defined each of the three types the 
City uses. 

Mr. Tuchscherer noted that on page 11 under business activities, the negative $4,500,000 is 
there because the short term pipeline loan was still outstanding at the end of the year. He 
said next year it will show up as a $4,900,000 asset in infrastructure. 

In response to a question from Thomas Laing, Mr. Tuchscherer said he receives a peer 
review every 3 years and his reports are reviewed by the Secretary of State annually. 

(2) Lane County Sheriff's Office Activity Report 
Sgt. Osborne apologized for the lack of a report and explained it is due to switching over their 
County's reporting software. He discussed some of the staff changes in the sheriff's office 
including Doug Woolley, who retired as Deputy Sheriff and was replaced by Byron Trapp. 
Sgt. Cliff Harrold has been promoted and is familiar with the Veneta and Creswell contracts 
which is a great thing for the City. Sgt. Osborne said the Resident Deputy program that was 
going to get defunded has been funded for the rest of the year and they are looking for new 
funding with the help of Lane County Commissioner Jay Bozievich. The jail is still hiring; and 
have hired 35 deputies since the jail was fully funded. 

In response to a question from Thomas Laing, Sgt. Osborne said Lane County does give 
veterans preference for hiring. 

In response to a question from Mayor Larson, Sgt. Osborne said the cameras at the skate 
park need some adjustments and staff is working on that. He said they are excited to have 
the cameras and he sees a lot of benefit of having the cameras there. 

Minutes of the Veneta City Council 
January 27, 2014 

Page2 



b. Councilor/Committee Liaison Reports 
Mayor Larson said the School Board will be going out for a bond. They have asked for someone 
from the Council to sit on their recruiting panel for the new Superintendent. 

6. STAFF REPORTS 
a. Finance Director. ........................................................................................ Shauna Hartz 

(1) Budget Preparation Schedule 
Hartz reviewed the proposed schedule for the 2014-15 budget process. 

In response to a question from Mayor Larson, none of the Councilors had any conflicts with 
the proposed schedule. 

In response to a question from Thomas Cotter, Hartz said we have a full Budget Committee. 

(2) Second Quarter Financials 
Hartz reviewed the financial report making special note of the high revenue percentages due 
to receiving the majority of tax money from the County during November and December. 

b. City Recorder/HR & RM Administrator ........................................................... Chris Workman 
(1) Amendment #1 to Contract with The Building Department 

Workman said the City has contracted with the Building Department since 2000 for all building 
and electrical inspections within the City. Staff has been satisfied with the services provided but 
there is no term limit on the existing contract. Staff felt the need for a Request for Proposal 
process isn't necessary; however, management felt the contract should have term limits and 
other specific language that has been added. 

In response to a question from Mayor Larson, Workman said the amendment will include the 
five year renewal date. He said the ePermitting system will be a service to contractors more 
than to homeowners. He said the new permitting process will be a lot more convenient for staff 
as well as customers. Contractors will be able to apply and pay for building or electrical permits 
on line at their convenience rather than coming into City hall during office hours only. He said 
we haven't worked out all the kinks but the plan is to allow residents and contractors to come 
into to City Hall as well and complete the permit process. 

MOTION: Thomas Cotter made a motion to direct the City Administrator to sign 
Amendment #1 to the Contract for Professional Services between the City of 
Veneta and The Building Department, LLC. Thomas Laing seconded the 
motion which passed with a vote of 4-0. 

(2) ePermiting Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA) with State of Oregon 
Workman said the online system requires several hours of training. Basically, the entire 
paper process we currently use will be put online. He said this is a fairly large undertaking 
but staff is hopeful this process will make it more convenient for contractors and be a time 
savings tool for staff. Staff is looking at starting the training this summer. Staff would like to 
get the system implemented and up and running before construction starts back up. 

In response to a question from Thomas Laing, Workman said the 4% surcharge is already 
attached to all permits. He said the City pays a credit card service fee for online payments 
and credit/debit payments but there will not be any other additional fees associating with the 
ePermit process. 

Minutes of the Veneta City Council 
January 27, 2014 

Page3 



MOTION: Thomas Cotter made a motion to direct the City Administrator to enter into 
the Intergovernmental Partnership Agreement with the State of Oregon for 
ePermit System and Services. Thomas Laing seconded the motion which . 
passed with a vote of 4-0. 

c. City Administrator .......................................................................................... Ric Ingham 
( 1) Ordinance 509 - AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 13.30 OF THE VENETA MUNICIPAL 

CODE TO INCLUDE BROADBAND CONDUIT AS A CITY PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT. For First 
Reading by Title Only. 

In response to a question from Thomas Laing, Ingham said the fiber line did not go all the 
way through to Crow or Lorane. Councilor Laing said he was fairly certain it had. Ingham 
said he would follow up with Milo Mecham at LCOG to see if they may have put it in years 
ago. 

MOTION: Thomas Cotter made a motion to approve Ordinance No. 509, an ordinance 
amending Chapter 13.30 of the Veneta Municipal Code to include broadband 
conduit as a City public improvement. For first reading by title only. 
Thomas Laing seconded the motion which passed with a vot~ of 4-0. 

Ordinance 509 was read into the record for first reading by title only. 

(2) Proposal from Dougherty Landscaping & Associates for Landscaping Design at the 
Intersection of Territorial and Highway 126 

Ingham reviewed his memo and said now that we are certain that the four corners area can 
be watered this summer staff is comfortable asking the Council to commit to having this area 
beautified by the Garden Club. 

In response to questions from Mayor Larson, Ingham said we would probably try do it all of 
the work in-house between City employees and the Garden Club volunteers. He said he's 
fairly positive we have agreements with all property owners and ODOT from when the area 
was beautified in years past. Ingham said a "not to exceed" amount would be fine but staff 
believes this is a small enough project that the amount of the contract should adequately 
cover the cost DLA's costs. 

MOTION: Thomas Cotter made a motion to approve the landscaping design proposal 
from Dougherty Landscape Associates (DLA} in the amount of $4,470. 
Thomas Laing seconded the motion which passed with a vote of 4-0. 

(3) Questions from Councilors 
None 

7. OTHER 

8. ADJOURN 
Mayor larson adjourned the Veneta City Council ~~ = ~ 

~~-~a/ 
Sandra H. Larson, ayo 

A&~~ 
Darci Henneman, Assistant City Recorder 
(Minutes prepared by DHenneman) 

Minutes of the Veneta City Council 
January 27, 2014 

Page4 


